City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County (C/CAG)

Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC)
Meeting Minutes
July 24, 2025

1. Call to Order
Chair Swire called the meeting to order at 6:01 PM.

Name Agency Jan Mar May July
2025 2025 2025 2025

Public

Matthew Self County of San Mateo X

Malcolm Robinson San Bruno X X

Alan Uy — Vice Chair | Daly City X X X

Angela Hey Portola Valley X X X

Justin Yuen South San Francisco X X X

Mike Swire - Chair San Mateo X X X

Jean Yang Redwood City X* X
Elected

Flor Nicolas South San Francisco X' X X

Mary Bier Pacifica X X X

Patrick Sullivan Foster City X X X

Desiree Thayer Burlingame X! X X X

Stephen Rainaldi Millbrae X* X X

Isabella Chu Redwood City Xt* Y

Paul Nagengast Half Moon Bay X* X

Greg Wright Pacifica X* X

TAttended meeting online via Assembly Bill 2449.
*First meeting.
C/CAG Staff present: Audrey Shiramizu, Kaki Cheung, Jeff Lacap, Sophia Palacio.

Guest(s): Emanuel Washington, Ahmad Haya (City of Millbrae), Armando Mora (City of
Millbrae), Ann Schneider, and others in attendance.

2. Public comment on items not on the agenda

ITEM 3



Emanuel Washington from the Redwood Shores Cycling Meetup commented on the
upcoming Civilized Century event found on civilizedcentury.com.

. Approval of the Minutes from the May 22, 2025 Meeting

C/CAG staff Audrey Shiramizu noted that Member Nicolas was incorrectly marked as absent
at the May 22, 2025 meeting. Staff noted that when voting for approval of the meeting
minutes, the May 22 minutes will include the correct participation list.

There were no public comments on the minutes.

Motion: Member Wright motioned to approve the minutes. Member Rainaldi seconded the
motion. Member Yuen abstained. All other members in attendance voted to approve. The
motion passed.

Review and consider City of Millbrae’s request for reallocated Transportation
Development Act Article 3 Funds for the Murchison Drive Project

C/CAG staff Audrey Shiramizu introduced the Transportation Development Article 3, or TDA
Article 3 project fund reallocation request made by the City of Millbrae to construct Millbrae’s
portion of the Murchison Drive Bicycle Improvements Project. Ahmad Haya from the City of
Millbrae presented the project updates and reasoning for the $100,000 fund reallocation
request. After discussion, staff requested the committee make a motion to recommend approval
of the fund reallocation.

Member Rainaldi commented that on Murchison Drive, Mills High School and Spring Valley
Elementary School do not have Safe Routes to School (SRTS). He also noted that Murchison
Drive is indistinguishable between cities, so both Millbrae and Burlingame will benefit from
the project.

Member Chu asked why the design team chose an unprotected bicycle lane, given that the
primary risk for cyclists is being hit by cars. Ahmad noted that line-of-sight was the main factor
in project design and a protected bicycle lane is one of the alternate plans. He also noted that
the bicycle lane classifies as a Class 1V Buffer Bike Lane and Millbrae wanted to keep the
street consistent to the existing bike lanes. Member Chu also asked if removing parking was
considered to ensure lines of sight were created. Ahmad confirmed that parking was a
consideration. Member Chu commented that bicycle infrastructure design should not be in
direct competition with car storage and would prefer to see a parking-protected bicycle lane.
She emphasized that cyclists need to be prioritized over cars.

Member Wright asked how many driveways are along the project corridor and how cars exiting
from driveways influenced the design. Ahmad noted that there are a few commercial and
apartment driveways and that staff considered the multi-family units. Member Rainaldi noted
that cars will not need to edge out further into the street with the current design plan.

Members Uy and Wright asked how the original Burlingame project compares to the current



plan. Ahmad noted that Millbrae wants to proceed quickly, and it is more cost-effective to
construct both sides of Murchison at one time. Member Wright asked if the construction cost
would be reduced by doing both Millbrae and Burlingame’s sides at one time. Ahmad noted
that staff cannot guarantee a reduction, but the plan is less disruptive to the community by
completing it at one time. He also noted that Millbrae and Burlingame will split the $500k
budget to give a $250k budget responsibility to each city. C/CAG staff Audrey Shiramizu
commented that the original project did not include Murchison and only had one side of
Murchison included.

Member Uy asked if any other grant applications could have been funded instead during the
previous call for projects when Burlingame was awarded funding (FY 2022/23). C/ICAG
Deputy Director Kaki Cheung noted that there were no other requests for the funds and that
Millbrae was ranked next in line to be funded in FY 2022/23.

Public member Ann Schneider commented that Millbrae did not include community outreach
and that the bicycle lane plan is a compromise between Burlingame and Millbrae.

Motion: Member Wright motioned to recommend approval of request for reallocated
Transportation Development Act (TDA) Article 3 Funds from the Burlingame Murchison
Drive, Trousdale Drive, and Davis Drive Bicycle Route Improvement Project. Member
Nagengast seconded the motion. All members in attendance voted to approve. The motion
passed.

Review and discuss a potential combined Call for Projects for Transportation
Development Act Article 3 and One Bay Area Grant 4 funds

C/CAG staff Audrey Shiramizu introduced a draft proposal for a combined Transportation
Development Article 3 (TDA Article 3) and One Bay Area Grant 4 (OBAG 4) call for
projects. C/CAG staff Jeff Lacap presented the proposed Call for Projects schedule.

Member Sullivan asked what the factors are for fund distribution and if the bicycle mileage
to the population ratio could be compared as a logical factor. C/CAG Deputy Director Kaki
Cheung noted that the fund distribution and allocation process must be competitive.

Members Wright and Nagengast asked how this may impact the Committee’s responsibilities
and how would it impact smaller cities. C/CAG Deputy Director Kaki Cheung noted that the
decision still resides within the C/CAG Board, and the combined Call for Projects aims to
improve efficiencies for applicants by combining the application and reduce administrative
burden. She also noted that for OBAG 4, the review committee will evaluate and make a
recommendation to the Board, which will ultimately go to the Metropolitan Transportation
Commission (MTC) for final approval.

Chair Swire asked if the Board or the Committee will conduct the evaluation for TDA 3.
C/CAG Deputy Director Kaki Cheung noted that in this proposal, the evaluation committee
may be made up of a small number of members from this committee, other committees, and



other potentially other agencies or groups. She noted that in the past, applicants have
presented their applications to this Committee and that process could carry over.

Member Wright asked if the combined application is an absolute decision or if the committee
still has a say. C/CAG Deputy Director Kaki Cheung noted that staff planned to try the
combined application process and discuss if the committee wants to revert to separate
applications in the future.

Chair Swire asked if staff could combine the applications and keep the same evaluation
committee.

Members Hey and Sullivan noted that if applicants fill out one joint application, C/CAG may
be less likely to get two projects from a jurisdiction. Member Hey suggested an online county
grant management portal or software for streamlining.

Member Chu noted that software could save time and reduce duplicate work by allowing
auto-population and small changes. She noted that may reduce confusion for applicants.

Member Yuen asked if a city would still be able to choose which funding source to apply for,
or if the applicant review will recommend or award specific funds. Member Yuen also noted
that with more federal challenges with environmental work and processes, applicants may
prefer a locally sourced grant. C/CAG Deputy Director Kaki Cheung noted that the specifics
have not been planned out yet, but cities would be able to identify and submit which grant
they would like.

Member Wright asked if projects could be bundled together with different funds. C/CAG
staff Jeff Lacap noted that there are opportunities for collaborations under OBAG within
close-range jurisdictions. C/CAG Deputy Director Kaki Cheung noted that OBAG includes a
wider variety of projects, while TDA includes only bicycle and pedestrian projects.

Member Rainaldi asked if all groups and communities will be represented if a 3-person
subcommittee change is made. C/CAG Deputy Director Kaki Cheung asked if a 4-person
BPAC panel would be better with a geographic representation that the committee chooses.

Member Rainaldi asked how much time the combined application would save. C/CAG
Deputy Director Kaki Cheung noted that the C/CAG team is small and applications take time
to process.

Member Wright asked how the evaluation committee was determined for OBAG 3. Jeff
noted that staff wanted a wide variety of evaluators. The evaluation committee included
members from BPAC, C/CAG Committee, Commute.org, and other external agency
partners.

Member Thayer asked about the evaluation committee selection. C/CAG Deputy Director
Kaki Cheung noted that in the past, for OBAG 3 the committee decided who would represent
BPAC. The Board does not select the evaluators.



Public member Ann Schneider asked if staff are recommending that the team of evaluators
under TDA 3 would look like OBAG 3. C/CAG Deputy Director Kaki Cheung confirmed
yes. Ann noted that BPAC members would have reduced knowledge and the loss of
knowledge could disadvantage smaller cities.

Member Wright commented that he understood the effort to reduce application and staff
administrative burden, but has issues with the review changes.

Member Uy asked what voice BPAC would have if the joint evaluation committee were to
move forward, and what next steps would be for the committee to provide input on the
applications. C/CAG Deputy Director Kaki Cheung noted that today’s item was for
discussion and that staff has noted today’s recommendations for moving forward.

Member Chu noted that she agrees with the effort to improve application aspects such as
modifications or a portal, but is less supportive of a subcommittee evaluation.

Chair Swire noted the overall BPAC opposition for changes to the evaluation and review
process. He also noted that the loss in geographic variety and those with different traveling
methods would not have as much experience and empathy as this committee.

Member Communications

Member Hey noted that Portola Valley Bicycle and Pedestrian Traffic Safety Committee
approved a draft of their local road safety plan.

Member Sullivan emphasized road safety and commented that he asked the Foster City Parks
and Recreation Director to post e-bike qualifications and speed limits on levies.

Member Rainaldi noted that he would like to see more e-bike information and legality of
electric motorbikes versus electric bicycles.

Chair Swire noted that the San Mateo Police Department made a great presentation on e-bikes
with state rules and regulations. He suggested that the BPAC could organize a distributable
version for the county.

Chair Swire noted that the City of San Mateo is considering removing the Humboldt Street
bicycle lanes but also noted that it is an extremely dangerous street. He commented that
jurisdictions should be aware of police data errors with crash reports.

Member Sullivan asked if the DMV Handbook has a section for e-bikes and if that could be
included within the book. He also commented on the need to emphasize that cyclists must
follow rules and take responsibility for safety on the roads along with drivers.

Member Chu noted that she enjoys bulbouts as an avid walker and noted that advocacy for
road design is to avoid bicycle and pedestrian confrontation. She wanted to know what
infrastructure types protect both parties.



7. Adjournment

Chair Swire adjourned the meeting at 7:38 PM.



